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THE DUSTOM EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REFORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustess present their annual report together with the financial statements and suditors report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The annual report sarves the purposes of
both a Trustees' report, and & directars’ repant and strategic report under company law

The Academy Trust operates an ecademy for pupils aged 4 to 19 gerving a cefchment area primarily in Duston
Nerthampton. It has a pupll capacity of 1820 and had 2 roll of 1983 in the school census an 19 January 2024,

Structure, governance and managemeant
a. Constitution

The Academy Trust s a company limited by quarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable COMmpany’s
memorandum and arlicles of association are the primary govesning documents of the Academy Trust. The
Trustees of The Duston Education Trust Limited are also the dirsctors of the charitable company for the
purpesee of company law. The charitable company operates a8 The Dusion Schael,

Details of the Trustees who served during the vear, and fo the date thase accounls are approved ane incleded n
the Refarence and administrative details on page 1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company underiakes to confribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
evant of it being wound up while they are a member, or within oo yoear after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be reguired, not exceeding £10, for the debis and lfabilitias coniracied before they ceased to be
a mambsr

£. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The governance siructure comprises of three members, a skills-based board of up to 10 Trustees under article
S0 and a minimum of two parent Trustess appointed under arlicles 53-58 in addition to up two staff Trustess and
the Principal

Trustes pesifions are advertised locally on the scheal's social media, Inspiring Gevernance and Sovernars for
Schoaols. Applicants are interviewed by the Trustess and sppointed by the Members or co-opted by the governing
body. Trustees are subject o retiremant by rotation on & four year cycle but are efigible for reappointment at the
end of this period.

d. Pelicies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

Upon appointment, Trustees are given access to documents specifying the remié and role of the board and is
commitees. They alse receive a welcome emaid from the governance professional containing the detalls of
safeguarding, Prevent and Cyber Security training and the new trustes will meet with the Chair of the bioard,
Frincipal and govemance profassional, each of whom plays a crucial role in halping the trustee understand the
context of the school. The new trustee (& encoursged to fake time fo consider which area’s (hey would lika tn
focus on and imvited to fain the relevant eammittzals, Further frustee training is organised throughout the year.
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

. Organisational structure

The Trustees are responsible for the cverall performance of the school and for ensuring that trust funds are used
in aocordance with applicable law. To discharge these duties, the trust has an spproved gchema of delegation
and subject 1o the arlicles of association, the constiution, membership and procedures of any commitiae shall
pe determined by the Trustees. The board has established the following structure of committess o act in an
advisory capacity except where powers have besn specfeally delagatad to them by the Trusises as cullined in
the scheme of delegation:

. Resource and Audit Commiltes
) Standards and Curriculem Comimities

The resqurce and audit committee wil meet to consider the Academy Trust budges, regular fimance reporls and
the annual sccounts. The committes also approves tha intarnal contral mechanisms 1o ensure fhe Academy is
operating efficiently and effectively and proper accounting records are maintained, The standards and curriculum
aommittae will mest to consider the approach to curriculum, leaching standards, assessment data and pupil
progrese. The establishmenl terms of reference. constitution and membership af any committee shall ba
reviewed annually.

The appointment and appraisal of the Principal & resarvad for the Trustess, ag Iz the mwestigation of any
financial iregularities, The appointment of the Chair and Vice=Chair of the board & resenved for the Trustees.
The Academy Trust seeks to involve a Trustee in the interview panel for the recruitment of Vice Principals,
Aesistant \ice Principals and Directors of Leaming,

f. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key managemant personnel

The arangements for sefting the pay and remunaralion of The Acadermy Trust's key management parsonne
and any benchmarks, parameters of crifeda used in setling their pay are in strict accordance with school
teachers pay and conditions and the schood pay policy.
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THE DUSTON EDUGCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTIMUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

g. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of amployees who wese relevant unicn officials during the year 3
Full-time equivalent employes number |

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of
employees

0% "

1%e-50% 3

51%%-500 k

100% H

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £

Toltal coat of facility tima 5218

Total pay bill 5,524 BEO

Percentage of total pay bill spent on faclity time - b4

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid frade union activities a8 a percentage of total pald faciity time = g

hours
h. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The Duston Education Trust waorks with the Ambition Institute and Brooke Waston Teaching School to ensure
staff are able to access the suite of new NPQs. This aims to ensure that cur taff are fully equipped to apply for
leadership roles in the future and enables us to develop a pool of cur own leaders.

Im addition, The Dusion Education Trust works with the Inspiring Leaders Partnership fo access their range of
professional leadership and learning communities including Directors of Education, Directors of Finance far
example. Intemally, we have an internalised CPD pathway modsl, wih staff accessing a pathway focusing on
specific teaching and learning priorities for the school in order to embed the Extended Minds pragramme, thesa
are delivered by & range of senior staff.

With regards to Early Career's Teachers (ECTs), The Duston School is partnered with a range of providers
including Inspiring Leaders, Coventry University, Teach First Morthampton Teacher Training Parinership
INTTF}, Universily of Bedford, Uiniversity of Northampton and Wanwick University and Brooke Weston Teaching
Schoal.
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Objectives and activities
a. Objects and aims

The Trusiess have regard 1o the Charity Commissien guidance on public beneft. Knowing the individeal is st the
heart of our vision, TOET expects the bast of everyone imvobeed within i and we recognise tha transformative
power of salf-belief for all Trustess also have full regard for the objectives mentioned in the Arlicles of
Association of the Academy Trust, We have an inherent belief in the following six principkes:

Evergane is a leacsar,

Creating a can-do, soluticn focused cullure,

Doing & and having impaci — make a differancs;

Attzntion fo detail — follew up and follow through,

Understanding that making mistakes is okay —whal's impaortant i how we leam from them;
Baing outward thinking - adopt & mindset of restless axcellence.

& h e LRI

b, Objectives, strategies and activities

The Trusts sim is to ensura that all ehildren ase happy, confident, resilient and seff-critical learmers who achigve
thair fullest personal and academic potential. This is achieved through:

1. Providing high quality lsarning and leaching cpportunities on a daily basis through effective
classroom resourcing, extra-curricular opporiunities, and pastoral cane;

2. Raising the standards of educational achievement of all pupis, and in particular closing the
achisvement gap batween disadvantaged and non-disadvantaged pupis;

3.  Improving the effectiveness of the Academy by keeping the curriculum and organisational
structure under continual review and complying with curriculum requirernents,

4, Providing value for maney for the funds expended;

3 Building and maintaining close links with focal, national and international industry and commerce 1o
impact on the learming experence of our pupils,

g, Conducting the Academy’s business in accordance with the highest standards ol professionalksm,
honesty and intagriy.

c. Public bensfit

The Trustees confirm that thay have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2008 to have due
regard to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit and in particular 1o iU supplemerntany
public bensfit guidance on advancing education. The Trustees have refesred fo the guidance in the Charity
Cemmissions general guidance an public benefit when reviewing their aims and objectives and In planning their
fulure activities, In particular the Trustees consider how planned activities will corfribute to the aim and
objectives they heve sat,
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

Primary Phase

Foundation 5

The baseline for Early Years Foundation Stape indicated that 83% of this cohort reached GLD {Good level of
development) which i an increase of 3% from the previous year,

Phonics Sereaning Check
E5% of children in Year 1 passed the Phonics Scregning Check which incressed from 78% in 2023, Maficnal

data for the Phonics Screening Check in 2023 was 9%, Naticnal data for this year is not yet available.

Mulbplication Times Takle Check
4.2% of the Year 4 cohont achieved the full score of 25 in the Mulkiplication Check. This was an ncrease from
38% i 2023, The national data was 20% for 2023, The national data for this year is not yet available.

En Apsasement
The combined percentage for Reading, Writing and Maths for the End of Key Stage Two assessment is 70%
which is an increase from §2% in 2023 {increase of %), The national average for 2024 is 61%.

82% of chidren reeched, at least, the expacted standard for reading with 74% reaching the expected standard
nationally. 20% of the cohort achieved the higher standard in reading.

79% of children reached, at least, the expected standard In writing with 72% of pupils reaching this atandand
rationally. 123 of puplls reached Greater Depth which was a 8% increase from 2023,

79% of the year & cohort achieve, at least, the expecied standards for Maths, which was infine with the previous
year. The national average for Maths in 2024 js 73%,

80% of children reached, at least, the expected standard for Grammar, Punctuation and Speling with 72% of
pupile reaching this standard naticnally. 43% of the cohort achieved the higher standard compared with 23% the
previaus year,

8% of the cohort reached the expected standard in Science with 81% achieving thia nationally,

Summary of 2023/24 GCSE results:

" During the 2022 and 2023 examination seriea the school achieved very positive resulls. GCSE results in
2023 achieved a progress B score of +0.18, continuing the positive progress 8 scores achieved in 2022
(+0.03) and 2019 {+0.28).

; This pesitive trend of resulls has confinued for 2024, with a provisional progress 8 score of +0.18, as wall
as achieving some of the highest attainment results in the school's history,

. FE% achieved the basics of 0-4% in English and Maths, above the national average, and the highest in ha
school's histony.

L 33% achieved the basics of 9-6% in English and Maths, above the national average, and the highest in the
school's history,

. B5% of students were eniered in the EBace, well above the national average and with a TDS record high
of 37% achieving the standard pass in the EBacs, with 24% achieving the good pass.
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THE DUSTOMN EDUCATION TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantes]

TRUSTEES" REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report [continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

. All 4 elements of progress B have achisved a positve progress score with significant gains over the |ast
faw yaars in the progress scores for the Englsh element (-0.19 in 2022, +0.02 in 2023 and +0.23 in 2024)

. 57% of disadvantaged puplls achieved the basics of 3-43% in English and Maths, with 30% of
disadvantaged pupils achiaving the basics of 9-5% in English and Maths. This is significantly Righer than
pational for disadventaged pupils with nationally 43% achieving the basics at 4+ and 25% achieving the
basics al o+,

Sumima 4 4 Lavel resulis:
In 2023724 Sixth Form resulis were the bast ever in the school's hisiory:

* The average grade for academic subjects was C+ with an APS of 34.33, excagding the previous high
achigved in 2023 of 34,00,

' The average grade for applied subjects was Dist*- with an APS of 4195, excesding the previous high
achieved in 2023 of 37 42

T8% of students acheved A'-C excesding the previous high achieved in 2023 of 78%
. 43%, of students achieved A"-B exceading the previous high achigved in 2023 of 46%,

. 57% of all appiied grades achieved were al Distinction” and 91% of all applied grades were Distinction®-
Distinction

- Value Added for both academic and applied gualifications & expecied to be positive, particularly far
applied outcomes and will be released later in the Autumn tarm.

a, Key performance indicators

Staffing costs as 77.26% of total income (excheding capital) {2023 - 70.27%|

Staff Costs as a T0.42% of total expendiure,

Teaching staff costs as 74.45% of Total stafl costs (2023 - 76 88%).

Teaching staff cost as 57.52% otal revenue income,

Teaching staff costs es 8 57.04% lofal revenue expenditure,

Siaff costs a8 76.61% of tolal expenditure (excluding capital) (2023 - 75.39%)

For the Y/E 31 August 2024 the PFl coste amounted fo 10.82% of GAG income (2023 - 10.23%)
Current Asgets | Current Liabilities 2.26 times (2023 - 2.08),

[ A S

The Academy Trust also uses @ number of non-financial key performance indicators to mondor thedr
performances which includs:

= Teaching Staff to Support Staff ratio FTE: 1.901 (2023 FTE: 1.9:1)
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report {continued)

Achievements and performance {continued)

10,

Average students attendance (Yr R to Yr 11) 94%. The attendance percentage is befow target
expectations but does still remain about the national sverage. The Duston Sehool has & similar
proportion of disadvantaged students io national. Disadvantaged pupils achieved an estimated
progress score of -0.45, above the nafional average score of -0.55. 57% of disadvantaged pupils
achieved the basics of 9-4% in English and Maths, with 30% of disadvantaged pupils achieving the
basics of 9-5% n English and Maths. This is signifiicantly higher than national for disadvantaged
pupils with nationally 43% achieving the basics at 4+ and 25% schieving the basics gt 5+,

Al Non-BP Ef;““"' PP | upp
2014 227 166 571 59| 288
2015 234 170 612 64| 359
2016 230 2| 704 68| 296
2017 224 | 171 T6.3 | E3 23T
2018 230 166 73 6z 27
2013 235 171 75 58 25
2020 237 187 79 50 21
2021 219 187 78 51 21
2022 240 191 798 43| 204
2023 263 228| 8507 40 149
2024 262 215| 821 a7 179

b. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonabis expectation that the Academy Trust
has adequate resourcas o continue in operaticnal existence for the foreseeshle future For this ressan, it
continues fo adopt the going concem basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statermant of Accounting Policies,

¢. Promoting the success of the company

Since the 2021 inapaction The Duston Schoal has moved forwards at pace. Of note are the fallowing:

1.

£ 0

tn

The school has become a rational Behavisur Hub Lead Scheal, providing exlensive suppart nationally to
other schaolks and Trusts,

The school has established and embedded its own Army Cadet Troon,

The school has become a GEC schoal.

The school has retained its IGM Flagship School status, become an 10M National Champion Inclugion
Sehool, maintained its Investor's In People Gokd award and been recognised a8 an Investor's In Peaple
Wellbaing Scheal,

The school has ret2ined its ACE School of Charscler status,
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A& Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ALUGUST 2024

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

g,

7
8.

8,

10,
11.
12.

The schoal has provided sector-wide training and suppart, most notably in lpadership developemant,
curriculum, culture and behaviour, couplad with supparting the Exemplary Leadership Programmé and the
East Midlands Direct Instruction Huk.

The schaol eantinues o work with Humanlitopia and has a deeply embedded HumanUtopia Heroes
acheme in place, coupied with an array of student leadership appartunities.

The school has brought into play 8 GCSE pathways approach al Key Stage 4. This cigncular change is
nowe entering its second year,

The school plays an integral part in the Inspirng Leaders network, with the Principal siting on s fruest
board,

Tha schoal warks with an array of [TT providers and the Principal sits on the NITE steering commiltee.
The farmation of the TDS Sixth Form alumni, hosting several networking events within schoal.

The launch of the TDS characler award providing Sixth Farm students with the opportunity to suppert
within the school community.

The schoal has worked tirelessly to address the two AF| areas that wers identified in the 2027 inspaclion report
and the following has been put into place 1o address theea key aneas!

1: SEND

Strategic lead for SEND is a permanent member of the senior leadership team.

A SENDCo hae baan inteenalky grown.

Two deputy SENDCOS are firmly in place, one being The Positive Impact Centre (PIC]) manager o
sneUre the school's SEMH approrch permaates through whole school SEND provision,

A& mare established process and frequency of communication with various stakeholders, governar link and
parents,

Collaborative drive for an inclusive vision and culture throughout all levels of leadership. teaching and
support staff,

Re-setablichad systems and processes in place

External support of a SEND SLE (Brook Weston Teaching School Alliance)

SEND hat #& own place on the weekly QA cycle. which has developed |nto calendared EHCP pupil
pursLEts,

Raised accountability of middle leadess through directed tasks and middie leader training

Staff fraining for quality first teaching strategies and the school's 1WE ¥YOU' approach

Upekilling of SEMD department through SEND specific CPL.

\Whale-school embeds consistent routines for behaviour and leaming to support our SEND learmers needs
Cabendared pupil focus meetings for teaching stafl to focus on EHCP provision, high concern SEND pupils
= & collaborative agproach to personalised suppoert,

Bespoke transifion support for Year 11 SEND pupils and parents in collaboration with the careers
caardinator and SEMD department.

Local SEND network created in arder o support and develop the provision in the community.

Preparation for adutthcod enrichment workshops available to EHCP pupils throughout the year
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUBTEES" REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
altendence

Since the last inspection we have completed a full attandance audit by an external company. This has allowed us
to reflect upon our old processes around allendance and update them In order to support the post COVID
alténdance recovery. We have continued with our five formal stages of altendance approach which aflows all
eludlents fo fall into & category. Each category has a seres of actien points. To support the engoing challenge of
attendance io school we have restructured a number of attendance poesitions in terms of staff. We now have two
Educational Administrators, two Educational Welfare Officers and two WPA Aftendance Representative [private
Altendance Company that we buy into). This has been in place since Saptember 2023, This has allowed us to
speak fo parents of all puplls who are absent without @ reason. We are quicker &t picking up trends with
attendence and completing homa visits before 10.30am each merning.

Below iz a table outlining the progress made o far in terms of our restructure

Academic Year Pugil Premium Attendance Mon Pupil Premivm Atiendance
2022-23 fid_ 7% U3 9%
| fup to 31/5:2023)
2023-24 [ERES 7%
{up to 22/3/2024)

Financial review

Moet of the Academy Trust income is cbtained fram the DFE in the form of recurrent grants disbursed via the
Education Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). the use of which iz restricted to particular purposes. The grants
received from the DFE during the vear ended 31 August 2024 and the associaled axpenditure are shown as
restricted funds in the statement of financtal activiies. The in-vear deficit amounted to £131,232 {2023 - surplus
£180,548). The pension cogt is not included when calculating restricted funds in-year surplus ar deficit,

The Academy Trust also received grants for fixed assets from the ESFA. In sccordance with the charities
statement of recemmended praclice, ‘Accounting and Reperting Charities’ (SORP 2005), such grants are shawn
in the statement of financial activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund
belance & reduced by annual deprecistion charges over the expected useful life of the assets concemned.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for the Academy Trust is an saset which (2 defailed in note 22
o the fimancial stalemanis.
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantea)

TRUSTEES' REFORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

a, Reserves policy

The Academy Trust's reserve policy takes intp account the risk of fluctuations in grant income and spending
needs. In year reserves ate sel to cover staffing costs, PFI costs and other commamants, 1o fund changee in tha
cumicufum, and to mest unaxpected emergencies such as ungent maintenance.

Linrestricted funds are used for the genaral purposes of the Academy Trust, at the discretion of the Trustees,
Festricted funds will be spent in acocordance with the lerms of the particular funds. Demands an the Academy
Trusl resiricied income funds will vary over the coming years. The Academy Trust policy is to ensure reserves

are held o @ prudent level designed to meet the long term cyclical needs of renewsl and any other unforesesen
contingancies

The assed in tha pension reserve relates to the non-teaching staff pengion scheme where uniike the Teachers’
Pension Schame, separale assets are held to fund future liabilites. The scheme can be met in the longer tenm
from any combination of increased employer or employes contributions, Increased government funding of
changes to scheme benefits.

The fair value of tha pansion plan assets st 31 August 2024 s £8,177.000 which |8 EST6.000 in excess of the
pregsent valua of the defined benefit obligation st that date of £5,5601,000. The surplus is recognised in the
financial statements only 1o the extent that the acadsmy trust can recover the surplus, edher through a reduction
in future contributions or throwgh a refund fo the scademy trust As contributions will not be reduced and the
academy trust (8 unable to secure a refund. the asset has nol been recognised in the financial staterments.
Further details are provided in note 22,

At 31 August 2024 tha tatal funds comprsed:

Unrestricted aad 107
Restricted: Fixed asse! funds 3 104,088
Pansion resenrds -

Other 557 815
35,315,809

b. Investment policy

Tha Academy Trust's investment policy (s for its cash balances o provide for the day to day working capital
requirernents of its operations, whilst protecting the real long ferm value of any surplus cash balance against
infiation. In addition, to invest surplus cash funds to optimise returns but ensuring the investments instruments
gre such that thers is no risk to the loss of these cash funds.

The Academy Trust is authorised to iwest funds only in Banks authorised and monitored by the Financial
Senices Authority (FEA),
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 AUGUST 2024

. Principal risks and uncertainties

Trustees have asssessed the major risks fo which the Academy Trust is exposed and have dentified those
responsible for the management of these risks and planned mitigating action where possible. In addition, the
Trustees have appointed internal suditors who will assess risk as parl of their review. and ncluded the
management withing their terms of reference the Awdit and Resource Committes overses as part of their terms
of referenca,

The principle nsks idenlifiad are;

1. Achallenge for the school is to maintain and build upen its very strong outcomes, 1o ensure that the
schoel remains in the top 30% of all schools nationally
2, Nationalflocal changes to Funding Formula and langer term financial unceriainty such as:

Urnfunded Teachers and Suppor staff pay awards

Energy cosis

Risk of staff retention / morale f progression

Local epplication of DG funding in relation to PFI schools and High Needs funding
Cost of repair & maintenance of the swimming pool and lettings income.

RO Oom

FFI Costs and delverny of an effective service,

IT/ Network /Cyber Security and Artificial Intelligence.

Longer term MIS sclution needed,

Changing demographics and respending to ever increasing demand for secondary places at the school,
Falling rall nationslly an recruitmest infs Year R

Increase in LGPS contribution follewing Triannual valeation,

The School has achieved a 'Good’ Ofsted outcome. Hoewever, & challenge now for TDET is o navigate iz
owm future and the longer-term vision of becoming a MAT.

000 = Mo g a

The Academy will address any changes brought about by legislation and incorporate them into the financlal plan
Fundraising

The Duston Education Trust camies oul a limied amount of fundraising, mindful of the cammunitios within whics
it operates. In the circumstances when fundraising is undertaken. systems and controls are in place io separate
and protect funds. The Trust is mindful of its responsibdites under the Charities [Protection and Social
Invesiment) Act 2015 and legal rues, and enswres all acthities are agreed and monitored at Senior Leadership
Team level in compliance with relevant legal rules. Recognised standards are applied to ensure that fundraising
15 open. honest and respectful, prefecting the public from undue pressure to donate. Complaints are handled and
monitored through the Trusts complaints procedurs,

Flans for future periods

The Academy Trust will strive ta consolidate and build upan its educational cutcomes across all phases of the
egtablishment. The Acaderny Trust will also work to ensure that the trust prevides value for moeney and work
toward further fiscal economies of scale where possibla.

The Acadermy Trust is now at a transiionary phase and is considering serlously moving from & SAT fo a MAT,
having saught pefmission from the DfE, The Academy Trust is looking to merge with other schools and smaller
MATs, has put in a free school application and is looking at converting cutright from a SAT to & MAT. This will
change the dynamic and structure of #s composition maoving forwards. TDSTDET serves as a national
Behaviour Hub lead school and, as a result. has a significant national profiis which TDET wishes o preserve.
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THE DUSTOM EDUCATION TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guaraniee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUIST 2024

Funds held as custedian on behalf of others

The Academy Trust holds E4.720 {2023 EB.673) of 16-19 bursary funds as an agent for ESFA. Pleasa refer I
nofe 27 for further details,

Dizclosure of Information to auditors

inscfar & the Trustees are aware

» there is no relevant audil information of which the charitable company’s auditors are unaware, and
" that Trustees hava taken all steps that they cught to have taken o make themsslves aware of any
relevant audit information and 1o establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Trusiees' Report. incorporating & strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 11 December 2024 and signed on iz behalf by

Mrs C Wade
Chair of Trusiees
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THE DUSTOMN EDUCATION TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERMANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Duston Education Trust has
an effective and appropriate system of conirol, financial and otherwise. However, such a system [s designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and nat absolute assurance against matarial misstatarment or loss,

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken accounl of the guidance In DfFs Govemnance Handbook and
competency framework for governance,

The Beard of Trustess has delegated the day-to-day responsibiiity to the Principal, as Accounting Officer, for
ensunng financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between The
Duston Education Trust and the Secretary of State for Education, They are also responsdie for reporting ta the
Beard of Trusless any material weaknesses or breskdowns in internal contral.

Governance

The information on governanca included here supplements that described in the Trustses' Repart and In the
Statement of Trustees' Resporsibilities. The Board of Trustess has formally met 5 timas during the year.

Aftendance during the year at mestings of the Board of Trustess was as follows:

Trustes Mestings attended Ot of & possible
Mr J McCann, Chair of Trustees (resigned 31 5 5

Juty 2024)

Mr & Strickland, Principal and Accounting Officer 5§ &

Mrs C \Wade (appointed 13 February 2024), 3 4

(@ppointed as a Trustee 13 February 2024,
appointed Chair of Trugtees & Seatember 2024)

Mr M Golby 4 5
Mr & Crawie 2 ]
Mr M Downing (appointed 31 January 2024) 3 3
Mrs K Powefl 2 5
ke T Marston £ 4]
ir N Patel 3 o
Mrs b Pruthi 4 ]
hrs P Gilbert 4 5
MrA D Mumford (appointed 26 February 2024) 4 4
Mr T Pieron {apgointed 13 March 20243 3 3
Miss K Mccoll (eppointed 5§ Fabruary 2024) 4 4
Mr B Helson (appoinied 31 January 2024) 3 3
Mrz G Knowlon-Made [resigned 13 October 1 1
2023)

Mrs E Hopkins (resigned 18 Seplember 2024) ] &
Miss C Kitchen (resigned 10 June 2024) 4 4
Mr D J Rogers {resigned 16 January 2024) Q )
Mr L Mariin, Siaff Trustee (resigned 24 May 3 3

2034

We have Trustees linked io the following areas within the schoel, SEND, Safeguarding, Heslth and Safely and
Finance; the outcome of link visits is shared with the full board.
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
A Company Limited by Guarantee]

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

Monthly finence reparts are sent to all Trustess for review via emall and Governor Hub. Financial infarmation is
discussed further during haf termly monitaring meetings betwesn the Business Manager and Chair of the
Resource and Audit commiliee and the outcome of these mondoring visits are then shared with the full
Governing Body.

The baard contiries to cover all areas of Trugt business through s struciure of mestings and the commitee
tarms of referances were updated accordingly to ensure full coverage. The staffing structure ensuras hat the
Business Manager has a dimect channel 1o liaise with Trustees and a Governance Proessional wae appointed in
January 2024,

Conflicts of Interest

Trustes ame required to complete the register of interest on an annual basis. This document is published on Ine
school websde and amended as changes are required The register of interes! |s a standing agenda item for
sach meating to allow any changes to be declared by the beard

Mestings
The board have met n accordance with the Academy Trust Handbook,

Covernance raviaws;

&1l Trustess compiete a skills sudit on 8n annual basis o support with effective truslee recruiiment and influence
training. The School Resource Managament Seff Assessment is completed on an annual basis.

The Trust intends to conduct an external revieny of governance in Spring 2025,

Tha Resources and Audit committee is 8 sub-committes of the main Boand of Trustees. its purpose is to focus
on the effectivensss and efficiency of the management of the financial resources of the Trust in addition to
manitaring systems of contred and oversee statutory returns of a financial nature.

Attendance during the yaar 3l meefings was as follows:

Trustes WMeelings attended Crut of 8 possible
Mra M Pruthi, Chair 3 3
Mr J McCann z 3
Mrs F Gilben 2 a3

The Standards and Curriculum commites & a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustess, s purpose is 1o be
a 'critical friend' to the schood by providing constructive challenge to the Principal and school leaders on the
approach ta curriculum, teaching siendards and pupH progress

Atterddance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustas Meslings attenced Out of B possibla
Mr & Cravite, Chair 2 4
Mrs E Hopking (resigned 18 September 2024) 1 4
Miss C Kitchen (resigned 10 June 2024) 4 4
Mr L Martin (resigned 24 May 2024) £ 2
hr O Rogers (resigned 16 January 2024} 1 1
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibillty for ensuring that the Academy Trust dellvers good valug in
the use of pubke rescurces. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers fo the educational
and wider societal oulcomes. as well as estates safely and management achieved In retum for the tacpayer
IESOUNCES reseivad.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Acadermy Trusl's use of #s resources has provided good value for
meney during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be
impreved, including the use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where agpropriate. The Accounting
Officar for the Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

. Allocating the necessary resources to best promote the aims and values of the schoal

* Targeting resources deployed to best improve standard and the quality of provision

¥ Using resources to support the varous educational needs of all sfudenis

. Annual budget planning plus monthly management reparting of to the Trustees

- Regular auditing of the financial and management Infarmation throughout the academic year

& External auditing of Health, Safety & Estates

L, Analyels student performance data

& Ensuring the Trust remains financially stable and strong

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal contrel is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to aliminate afl risk of
failure o achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore. only provide reasonable and not shsaolute
assurance of effectivensss. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likefihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them afficiantly,
sffectivaly and economically, The system of internal conirol has been in place in The Duston Education Trust for
the year 1 Septembes 2023 for which the financial statements have been prepared to 31 August 2024 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and financial statemeants,

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
aperating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemanted to mitigate those risks. The Beard of
Trustees |s of the view that there is a formal angeing process for identifying, evelusting and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks thet has been in place for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and
up 1o the date of approval of the annual report @md financial statements. This process i regularly reviewed by the
Board of Trustees.

The risk and control frameweark

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial contral is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of dulies and a system of deleaation and
accountability, In particulas, It includss:

] comprehensive Dudgeling and moniloring systems with an annual budgst and periodic finencial reports
which are reviewsd and agreed by the Board of Trusiess

. regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Commitlee of repors which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
proCrEmimes
setiing targets to measure financial and other pedormance
clearly defined purchasing (asse! purchase or capital investiment) guidelines
identification and managemant of risks
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERMANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The risk and control framework (continued)

The Board of Truslees has decided to employ Moore as internal awditor to perform additional checks in the
20232024 academic year,

The internal auditors reds includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
&cadamy Trust's financial and other systems. In partcular, the checks carmied out in the current paniod Included

L] Payrodl

- Capital Income

- Finzncial Procedurss Manual
g Rizk Report

. VAT

On & trennual basis, the auditor reporis to the Board of Trustess, through the audif and risk commities on the
aperation of the svsteme of contral and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees” financsal responsibifties. On
an annual basis the puditor prepare a summary report to the committes outlining the areas reviewsd, key
findings, recommendations and conclusions fo help the commiltee consider achons and ASEeSE year on \ear
progress.

Review of effectiveness

Az Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsiblily for reviewang the effectivenese of the system of internal
contral, During the year in question the review has baan informd by

= the waork of the imternal auditar;

= the wark of the school resource managar vesd,
the schood reaource management salf-assesemant tool,
the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal contral framework.

. the work of the extermnal asditars

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the mplications of the result of their review of the system of internal
contred by the Awdit & Resources commithes and a plan 1o address wesknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the syelem is in place.

Conclusion

Bazad on the advice of the Audit and Risk Committes and the Accounting Officer, the Board of Trustees is of the

cipiniom that the Academy Trust has an sdeguate and effective framework for governance, rsk managemeni and
control,

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and eigned on thair behalf by

Mrs C Wade Mr 5 Strickland
Chair of Trusiees Accounting Officer

Date; 1§ - VL. - L
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of The Duslon Education Trust, | have congidered my respensibility to netify the Academy
Trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregubarity, Impropriaty
and non-complance with lerms and conditions of all funding. including for estates safety and management,
under the funding agreement between the Academy Trust and the Secratary of State for Education. As part of
my consideration | have had due regard o the reguirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including
regponsibiities for esiates safely and management

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust Beard of Trustaes are able to identify any matenial iregulas or improper
use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and condifions of funding
under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023

| canfirm thal no inetances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding ron-compliance have been discovered
to data. If any instances ape ldentfied after the date of thiz statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Truafees and ESFA c

MrS Strickland
Accounting Officer

Date: 10— —24y
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantesa)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustess (who are also the directors of the charfable company for the purposes of company law) ars
respongible for preparing the Trusteses' Report and the financial statemenis in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direclion published by the Education and Skils Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accouniing
Standards [Unied Kingdom Genarally Accepted Accounting Praclice) and applicable law and regulations,

Company law reguires the Trustenss to prepare financial statements for each financial vear, Under company law,
the Trustees must nol approve the financial statements unless they are safisfied that they give a frue and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of 15 incoming resources and application of resources,

including its imcome and expenditure, for that pericd. |In preparing these financial stetemeants, the Trustese are
reguired to;

- select suitable accounfing policies and then apply them consistenthy,

- observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 201% and the Academies Accourds Direction
2023 to 2024,
make [udgments and accounting esfimates that are reasonakle and prudent;
stale whether applicable UK Accouniing Standards have been follwed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and sxplained in the financial statements,

® prepare the financial staterments on the going concern basks wunless it is inappropriete to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are resgponsible for kesping edequate accounting records that are sufficient o show and explain
the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the finrancial posiien of
the chartable company and ensble them fo ensurs thet the financial etatements comply with the Companies Act
2008, They are aleo responeible for eafeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence far taking
reggonakle stess for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irmegularitiss.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other contrals, which conform with the requiremeants both of propriely and of good financial
managemens. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DFE have been apglied for 1ha
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsdle for the maimenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
irvciuded on the charitable company's website. Legizlation in the United Kingdom gowerning the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisgictions,

Approved by order of the membsars of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

M= C Wade
Chair of Trustees
Date; 1l —17L - iy
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantas)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST

Cpinion

Wa have audited the financial statements of The Dusten Education Trust (the ‘academy trust) for the year endad
31 August 2024 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet. the Statement of Cash
Fiowe and the refated notes, including 2 summary of signficant accounting policies. The financial raporting
framewark that has been appliad in their preparation & applicable taw, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
{United Kingolom Generally Accepted Accounting Practics), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of keland’, the Charities SORP 2018 and the
Acadernies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding AQEnCy.

In our opinion the financial stataments;

. give @ true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of itz
Inceming resources and application of resources, including s income and expenditure for the year then
ended,

. have besn properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

" have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2013 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding

Agency,
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audil in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (LK) (1SAs {UK]} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audors’ responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of cur repon. Wa are independent of the Academy Trust In accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Unitad Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled owr other ethical
respensibiiies in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence wa have obtained s
sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial sistements, we heve concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncersinties reiating lo evanis ar
conditicns that, individuslly or collectively, may cast significant doulst on the Academy Trust's ability to continue
&t @ going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financlal statements are autherisad far
BS50e,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trusteass with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this repart,
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information inclsded in the Annual Repost other than the financial
staterments and our Auditors' Repodd thereon, The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual Report. Our opnlon on the financial statements does not cover the cther information and,
except io the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
therecn, Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsestent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit. or otherwise appears to be matecially misstated. f we idenfify such malerial inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required 1o determine whether this ghies rise 1o @ matenal misstaternant in the
financial statements themsahves. I, based on the work we have parformed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Wie have nothing to repod in this regard,
Opinicn on cther matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

Im gaur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

. the information given in the Trustees” Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which
th financial staternente are prapared is conglsient with the finencial siatemants.

. e Trustees' Report and the Strategic Repor! have been prepared in eccordance with applicable legal
PELIPER LS,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of cur knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its envirenment obtained in the
course of the aud® we have not idantified material misztatements in the Trustees' Repart including the Strategic

Report,

We heve nothing to report in respect of the lollowing matters in relstion to which the Companies Act 2008
requines us to report to you i, in our opinicn:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audi have not been
recehsed from branches nof visded by us; of

. the financial statements are not in sgreement with the accounting records and refurns; or

. carain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we hanes nal receivad all the information and explanations we require for cur audi
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A& Company Limited by Guarantes)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of trustess

Az explained mare fully in the Statemant of Trustess’ Responsibilities, the Trustees iwho are also the directors of
the Academy Trust for the purposss of company law) are responsible for the pregaration of the financial
statements and for being salisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that ane fres from material
misstalement, whether due to fraud or ermor,

In preparing the financial stalements, the Trustees are respansibie for aseaseing the Acadermy Trust's ability o
condinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the geing
concern basie of accounting unless the Trustees sither intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or fo coease
operations, or have no realskic alternative but bo do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as & whole are frao
frem material misstatement, whather due fo fraud or eror, and to sswe an Auditors’ Repart that includes our
opinicn. Reasonable assurance is & high level of essurance, but i not a guarantee that an audit conductad in
accordance with 15As (UK) will abways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can ariss
from fraud or error and are considered material if individually or in the agoregate, they could reasonably be
sxpected 1o Influence the economilc decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Iregudarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in Ene with our responsibiliies, cuflined above, to detect material misstestements in respact of irregularitias,
inciuding fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irfegulariies, including fraud is
detailed below:

. Enquiry of management and thoes charged with govemnance arcund acual and potential litigation and
chaims;
Enguiry of entity staff 1o identify any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations;
Performing audit work over the risk of managemen! override of controls, including testing of journal
entries and other adjusiments for appropriateness and reviewing accounting estimates for bigs-

. Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance:

» Feviewing infernal audit reports;

" Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supperting documentation o sssess compliance
with appiicable lws and regulations,

Becausa of the inherant Emitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, inchuding
those leading to @ material misstatarnent in the financial stataments or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation = removed from the events and transsctions
reflected in the financial statements. as we will be less likety 1o become aware of instances of non-compliance,
The risk 5 also grester regarding imegularities occurring due to fraud rather than emor, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misnepresantatian.

A further deseription of our responsibilities for the sudit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's webs#e at www fro.om ukiauditorsrespongibilifies. This description foms part of our
Auditars’ Report.
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST (CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This report ls made salaly to the Acadamy Trusts members, s a body, in accordance with Chapler 3 of Past 16
of the Companies Act 2008, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Acadenny Trust's
membars those malters we are required to stabe to them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other purposs. To the
fullest extent permitted by kaw, we do not accept of assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formad.

Lu._x.qLLA

Rebecca Hughes BSc (Hons) FCCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
far and on bahalf of

MHE

Statutory Auditor

Morhampion

[¥ale 17 December 2024

MHA 15 the trading name of Macintyre Hudson LLP, a limited |sbility parnership in England and
Wales [regisiersd number DC212313).
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THE DUSTOMN EDUCATION TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEFENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE
DUSTOMN EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In @ceordance with the terms of cur engagement letter dated 12 September 2023 and further 1o the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accourts Direction 2023 1o
2024, we have carried out @n engagement to cbigin limited assurance about whether the engpenditure dizhursed
and income recefved by The Duston Education Trust during the year 1 September 2023 1o 31 August 2024 have
been applied to the purposes identfied by Pariament and the financial transaclions conform fo the suthorities
which gowern them

This report is made solely to The Duston Education Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
angagement letter, Our work has been underaken so that we might state 1o The Duston Edueatian Trust and
ESFA those matlers we are required to state in a report and for no other purpese, To the fullest exdent permitied
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility fo anyone other than The Duston Education Trust and ESFA,
for our work, for this report, or for the conchission wa have farmed,

Respective responsibilities of The Duston Education Trust's accounting officer and the
reparting accountant

The accounting officer |s responsible, under the requirements of The Dusion Education Trusts funding
agreament with the Secretary of Siete for Education dated 31 March 2071 and the Academy Trust Handbook,
extant from 1 September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received s applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and the financlal ransactions conform to the authorities which govern tham.

Our respansivilities for this engagement are establishad in the United Kingdom by our profession’s athical
guidance and are io obtain limifed assurance and report in accordance with our engagement lettar and the
requiremants of the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, We report o you whether anything has come
fo our attention in camying out our work which suggeste that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 Seplembar 2023 fo 31 August 2024 have not been applied fo purposes
intended by Pariament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which gonvern them,
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE
DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordsnce with the Frameweosk and Guide for External Auddors and
Reporting Accountant of Acaderyy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited Sssurance engagement as
defined in our engagament letter

The ohbjective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order lo provide us with sufficient sppropriate evidence 1o exprese 8 negative conclusion on

regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than & ressonable assurance engagemant and
consaquently does not enable us to obtain assurance thal we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified In a reasonable assurance engagament. Accordingly, we do not express a posiive opinion,

Dur engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and progriety of the
Acadeamy Trust's income and expendiiure.

The work undedakan to draw 1o our conclusion includes:

. reviewing the Minutes of the meetings of the Governing Body and cther evidence made avadable to us,
radevant io our consideration of regularity;

. a review of the abjeclives and aclivities of the Academy, with refarence to the incomes sireams and othar
infarmation available to us as auditors of e Academy

] tasting of & sample of payroll payments o staff,

* festing of @ sampie of payments to suppliers and other third parties,

. consideration of governance issues; and

. evaluating the intermnal contral procedures end reporting lines, 8sling as appropriate and making
appropriate enguines of the Accounting Cfficer,

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in al matemal respects the
sxpenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 Seplember 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been
applied ta purposes intended by Parkament and the financial transactions do not confiorm i the authorities which
govern Them,

MHA
Merthampion
Statuony Auditor

Cale! 17 December 2024
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Festricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed assat Total Tatal
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Nata £ E E E £
Income from:
Donations and capital
grants 3 224,131 - 205,838 429,965 649 315
Other trading actities 5 41,115 = . 41,118 B2,085
Invastments =] 21,010 15,000 - 36,010 282
Charitable activibas ) . 12 E24,194 - 12,824,194 11,820,730
Total income 286 256 12,835,194 205,838 13,331,288 12,532 432
Expenditure on;
Ralsing funds 200,213 - - 200,213 145 3840
Charitablz activities B " 13,036 469 1,162,765 14,188,234 13,053,745
Total expenditure T 200,243 13,038 460 1,162,765 44,388, 447 13,198,137
Met movement in
funds befare other
recognised
aainsl losses) BE,043 (197, 275) [958 827) (1,068,159} [BES, 705}
Cther recognised
gains/losses):
Actuarial (ksses)igains
on defined benafit
pensicn schemes 2 - {20,000) - (20,000} 728,000
Met movement in
funcs BE, 045 (217 275} (956.827) (1,088,159} B2 255
—_———————
Reconciliaticn of
funds:
Taotal funds browght
forward 568,064 774,831 36,061,013 35,403 988 36 341 673
Met maovernent i funds BB.043 (217,275) [958 827) (1,088,159) B2 285
Tatal funds carried
forward 654107 557 B16 34,104,086 356,315, E09 35,403 558
e —— B—

The Staternent of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year,

The notes on pages 31 to 57 form part of these financial stetemants.
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST

(& Company Limited by Guarantes)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 092539605

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024
2024 2023

Mote E £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 34,031 164 34,871,311
Current assets
Debiors 13 385,145 571,493
Cash af bank and in hand 20,21 1,918,783 2230723

2,314,838 2802, 216

Creditors. amounts falling due within ane
yeas 14 i1,030,293) (1,368 650)
Met current asseis 1,264,645 1,432 65T
Total assets less current liabilities 35,115,809 36.403 868
Total net assets 36,315,808 36 403 968
Fundsa of the Academy Trust
Restricted Tunds:
Fixed assel lunds 15 34,10u, 086 35,08 013
Festricted income funds 15 BT, B16 T4 891
Total restricted funds 15 34,661,702 A6 B35,004
Unrestricted Income funds 15 564,107 EGE 064
Total funds 35,315,809 36,403,268
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

BALANCE SHEET ([CONTINUED)|
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024

The financial stalements on pages 27 to 57 were approved and authorised for ssue by the Trustees and are
signed on their behalf, by:

CRER L L L e T L T T T W T

Mrs C Wade
Chalr of Trustesg

Oate: 11 December 2024

The nates on pages 31 to 57 form part of these financial statements
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantea)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash used in pperating aclivities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equlvalents in the year
Cash and cash aguivalents &t the beginaing of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 31 to 57 form part of these financisl siatements

2024 2023
Note £ £
17 (346,834)  (564.698)
19 36,004 367,865
18 - (24,158)
(310,930)  (190,890)

2,230,723 2,421,713

20,21 1919,793 2,230,723

——————

]
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THE DUSTOMN EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.

Accounting pelicies

1.2

The Duston Education Trust is a private company limited by guarantee, incorperated in England. Its
registered number and address of registerad office are detsiled on page 1. The nature of the
Academy Trust's operations and principal activilty are detailed in the Trustees’ Repaort.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistenty,
axcept where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

The financisl statements ame prepared in £ stering. rounded o the nearsst £1.
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial staternents of the Academy Trust, which is & public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared undar the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financlal Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reparting by
Charllies: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing theit accounts in
actordance with the Financial Reporling Standard spplicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(Charites SORP (FRS 102)), the Academiss Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006,

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concermn is appropriate ie. whether there are any
material uncerainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trus! to continue as a going concem, The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
a parod of al least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existance
for the foreseeabls fulure and there are no material uncerainties about the Acadery Trust's shility to
continue as a going concerm, thus they continue 1o adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statemenis,
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THE DUSTOM EDUCATION TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ALUGUST 2024

1.

Accounting policles (continued)

1.3

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitiement to the funds, the
recespt is probabde and the amount can be measurad refiably,

Granis

Granls are included (n the Statement of Fmancial Activities on a recevable basis. The balance of
income receved for specific purposes but net expended during the period is shown in the relevant
furds on the Balance Sheet. Where income i received In advance of meeting any performance-
related condidions there is not uncondibanal entitierment io the income and Ee recognition is defarrad
and included in creditors as deferred income until the parformance-related conditions are mel. Where
entiternent cccurs before income is recewed, the income s accrued,

General Annual Grant is recognised infull in the Staterment of Fmancial Aclivibes in the year for which
it is receivable and any abalement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as

a liabdity,

Capital grants are recopnised in full when there i an unconditicnal enfitlement o the grant. Unspent
smounts of capital grants ane reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognsed when there is entitlement and ere nod deferred owver the life of the assel on
which they are expended,

Spansorehip income
Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts I a denation is recognized in the

Stateman! of Financial Activitias in the year in which & iz receivable (whera thers ara no performance-
ralated conditions) where receipt is probable and it can be measurad reliably.

Donations

Donstions are recognised on a recahvable basie (wher there are no performance-related conditions)
where the recaipt 5 probable and the amount can be rel=@bly measured,

Qther Inceme

Diher income, inchuding the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receihvable and to the extent
the Academy Trust has provided the goods or sarvices.

Donated fixed assets (excluding transfers on conversion or into the Academy Trust)

Whese the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured et far velee, unlese it & impractical o
measure this rellably, in which case the cost of the ftem to the donor should be used. The gain |5
recogrised as ‘Income from Donations and Capital Granis' and & corresponding amount & included

in the appropriata fixed assal category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance
wilh the Acedemy Trust's accounting palicies.
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guaranteas)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Aceounting policies [continued)

1.4 Expenditure

1.5

16

Expanditure iz recognisad ancs thers is a legal or constructive obfigation to transfer economic benefit
to & third parly, It is pretabie thet a fransfer of economic benefits will be required in settiement and
the amaunt of the obligation can be measured reliably, Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking sach activity. Direc! costs attributable to a single activity are allocated deracthy
to that activity. Shared costs which centribute to more than one activity and suppont costs which ane
naot attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resaurces. Central staff costs are aliccsted an the basis of fime spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the porion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on ralsing funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trusts educational aperations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportionad to charitable activities.

Al resources expended are inckusive of irecoverabls VAT,
Taxation

The Acadermy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out In Paragraph 1 Schadule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definiion of a chastable company for UK corporation tax

pUrpoSEs

Accordingly, the Academy Trust s potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of tha Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed azsets and depreciation

Assels costing £1,000 or more are capitalisad as tangible fixed sssets and are carmied st cost, nat of
depreciation and any pravision for impairment.

Where tangible fxed assefs have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
governmant or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected wseful econamic lifz. Where there are specific conditions attached 1o
the funding reguiring the confinued use of the asset, the refated grants are credited to a restrictad
fixed assel fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Shest,
Depreciation on the relevan! assels is charged directly 1o the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Staternent of Financial Activities. Whers tangible fixed assels have besn acquired with unrestrictesd
funds. deprecistion on such assels i charged fo the unrestricted fund,

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fived assets other than freehold land, &t rates calculated to
write off the cost of these assels less their estimated residual value, basis aver their expacted usshul
[rves.,
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(& Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1. Accounting policies [continued)

1.6

18

18

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freghold land and propey - 50 vears siraight line (land is not deprecisted)
pr estimated usaiul [He if kwer

Furmiture and equipmaeant - 3 years siraight lina

Computer eguipment = 5 years sirsight fine

Miior vehichkes = 3 y=ars straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset & carried out if events or changes in circumetances indicates
that the carning value of any fxed asset may not be recoverable. Shorfalis between the camying
value of fived assets and thair recovesable amounts are recognised Bs mpaiments. Impainment
loeses are recognised in the Statemant of Financial Activities.

Liabilities

Ligkilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet dale ag a regult of a past
event, itis probabde that a transfer of economic benefit will e required in setfiernant, and the amount
of the selilemant can be estimalad raliably. Liabites are recognisad 2t the amount that the Acadamy
Trust anticipates i will pay to seftle the debl or the amount it has received as advanced payments far
the goods or sarvices i§ must provide,

Firancial instruments

The Academy Trust only hobds basic financial instruments 8s defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial kablities of the Academy Trust and thelr measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assals - Irade and other deblors ars basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
mieasurad at amortisad cost as detailed in note 13. Prepayments are not financial instruments

Cash ai bank is classified as a bagic financial instrumeant and |2 measured at face value,

Financial liabilies - trade creditors, accruaks and other creditars are financial instruments, and ane
measured gt amorised cost as detaded in note 14, Taxation and soc@l security are not incheded In
the financial instruments disclosure definition, Deferred income is nol geemed 1o be a fimancial
liakdlity, as the cash settlerment has already faken place and there is an obligation fo deliver senfices
rather than cash ar another financial meirumant.

Leased assets

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged lo the Statement of Financial Aclivites on &
siraight-line basis over the leaze term,
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THE DUSTOMN EDUCATION TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1:

Accounting policies {continued)

.10 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust sre provided by the Teachers' Pension
Schems ("TPS") and the Local Governmen! Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes

The TP3 is an unfunded scheme and confributions are calculated to spread the cost of pansions ovar
employees’ working fives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll, The confributions are
determined by the Government Actuary based an guadrennial valuations using & prospeciive unit
credit mathod. TPS & an unfunded mulfi-employer schema with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS s teated as a defined confribufion scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised m the period to which thay relate,

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme, and the asssts are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate frustes administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measurad at falr
value and labilties are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent fo the current rate of retum on & high quality corporate bond of
eguivakznt terrm and currency to the liabilites, The actuarial valuations are cbtainad at least b ignnially
and are updaled at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surples are the
cument service costs and the cosis of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtaiimants. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the ne! defined
benefit lisbility'asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined bensfit obBgation and interest income on the scheme assets. calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the baginning of the periad by the rate used 1o
discount the benafit obligations. The difference betwesn the intarest income on the scheme acsats
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognisad in other recogniged gains and losses,

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised Immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.11 Agency armangaments

The Academy Trust acis as an agent in distributing 15-18 bursary funds from ESFA, Paymants
recetved from EEFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of
firancial activitios as the trust dees not have conirel over the charitable application of the funds. The
Acaderny Trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is
recognised in the statement of financial activities, The funds received and paid and any balances
feld are disclosad in note 27,
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guaranise)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1

Accounting policies [continued)

1.12 PFIl Contracts

The huildings used by the Academy Trust were constructed under a Private Finance Iniiative (PFI)
Coniract between Northampionshire County Council (Local Authority) and a Private Contractor.

The project was complated prior to the Schoofs conversion to Acadery stalus. On conversion, the
Academy Trust has antered inlo @ School Agresment with the Local Authority which tranefars the
Local Authority's main obiigations under the PRI Contract to the Academyy Trust,

Tne Academy Trust is responsible for the revenue costs of maintaining the facilies. The payments
made 1o the Local Autharity in respect of the PFI Contract unitary charge refating to these revenua
costs are therelore expensed to the Statement of Financial Activities in the period to which they
relale.

The land was transfermed to the Academy Trust by the Local Authority on comeersion 1o an Academy,
A5 the Academy Trust takes on the risks and rewards with the land and buildings, including the long
term maintenance of the propery once the PFI contract has enced, the land and buildings are
capitalised as fixad assets on the Academy Trustfs Balance Shest at valuaticn ueing the dapraciated
replacement cost basis. These assets are then depraciated over their useful economic [ife,

1.13 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed assel funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
impaged by the funders where the asset aoquired or created is held for 2 specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grams fram the Department for Education Group.
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THE DUSTON EDUCATIOM TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantees)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 AUGUST 2024

a,

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgmeant

Estimates and judgmenis are confinually evaluaied and are based on historical experiance and other
factors, including expsctations of fulwre ewvents that are belleved 19 be reasonsble under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and agaumptions:

The Academy Trust makes astimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accaunting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the misted acfual results. Tha astimates and
assumptions that have & significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
asseis and labifities within the next financial year are discussad below,

The present value of the Local Gowernment Pension Scheme defined benefit Babily depends on a
number of factors that are delermined on an ectuarial basie using a varety of assumptions, The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in thesa assumplions, which are disciosed in note 22, will mpact the carmying amount of tha
pension Eabilty, Furthermore a roll forward aporoach which projects results from the |atest full actuarkl
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions lability at 31
August 2024, Any differsnces between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carmying amount of the pension liakility.

Furthermore & roll forward approach which projects resulis from the latest full actuarial valuation
performed &t 31 March 2019 has been used by the aciuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August
2024, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial
valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the penaian liability.

The pensican schama surplus is recognisad i the balance shest to the sxtent to which it can be recoverad
through reduce confributions in the fulure or through refunds 1o the plan. Further details in note 22,

Income from donations and capital grants

Festricted
Unrestricted  fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds
Hh24 2024 2024 2023
E E £ 3
Donations 224 131 - 224131 251,740
Capital Grants = 205 833 205,838 38T 675
22413 205 838 428 985 48 315
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
|& Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2024

4.

Funding for the Academy Trust's charitable activities

Educational opearations

OfE/ESFA grants

Genaral annual grand (GAG)

Other DIE/ESFA grants
1B-18 funding
Pugil premium
Teachers' pay end pension grant
Other DIEESFA grants
niversal infant frag school meals
Mainsiream schocks additional grant

Other Government grants
Local authority grants

Additional funding |DFE/ESFA)
Cateh-up Premium

Income from other trading sctivities

Hire of facilities and income from clubs

Restrictad Total Taotal
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2023

E E E
10,010,852 10,010,652 2280214
1,110,387 1,110,387 1,082 655
34 462 334,452 310,180
313 502 313,602 43 483
127,038 127,036 131,33
65378 B5,3TE BB B35

S2d 458 X124 .4%9 A0 205
12286124 12,286,124 11,324,783
£40 813 4440 813 J80.101
440,813 440 813 380,101
&7.257 8T 257 115,836

o7 257 BT 25T 115,836
12,824 184 128241894 11,820,730
P————— | - ] —_—
Unrestricted Total Toial
funds funds funds

2024 2024 i
E E E

41,115 41,115 62,085
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THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

6. Investment income
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds: funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
E E E E
Bank interest recaivabils 21,010 - 21,010 282
LGPS pensicn income - 15,000 15,000
21,010 15,000 36,010 292
— _—m—— = —_—
s Expenditure
Staff Costs  Premises Other Total Total
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
E £ £ E £
Expenditure on raising
valumtany income:
Diirect costs 25,068 - 172,144 200,213 145,389
Educational cperations:;
Direct costs B 420 443 - 731636 10,152,129 8 TE2 434
Allocated supporl cosis 582 061 2 BO8 e 455 Q85 4 047,085 4291 314
10,140,573 2,858, 049 1,360,825 14,398,447 13189 137
—_— _ ] —_
a. Analysis of expenditure by activities
Activities
undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funcis
2024 2024 2024 2023
E E £ E
Educational ooerations 10,162,139 4047085 14188234 13.053.748
=
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

8.  Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

LGPFS pension costs
Staff cosls
Degpreciation
Technology costs
Premisse costs
Governance cosis
Qiher support costs

MNet Incomel[expenditura)

Ml income{expenditure) for the year includes

Operating leasa rentals
Dapreciation

Fees paid to auditors for
- gudit

- other genices

Educational Total Total

operations funds funde

2024 2024 2023

E E £

_ - 270040

&3z 061 £52.061 710,158

1,130,991 1,130,891 1,056,554

28,855 08 856 91,130

1. 787,058 1,767,058 1,724 955

ap 219 30,219 30 481

32T 802 S27,808 &61,056

4047095 4,047,085 4291314
—

2024 2023

E E

7,283 24 158

1130, 901 1,055,554

12,450 11,000

17,461 17 481
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THE DUSTOMN EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

8, Staff

a. 5taff costzs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salarizs
Social securnity costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Siaff reairuciuring cosls

Stafl restructuring costs comprise;

Redundancy paymienis

b. Staff nimbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

Teaching
Administretion and support
Managemaent

2024 2023

F £

T432 532 5,721,188

810,248 T2 236

1,6TATTS 1,528,571

8,922 B06 B 872,005

215,883 180,221

2,074

10,140,573 8,132,228

T e
2,074 =

—_——

2024 2023

Mo, M.

L av

a5 Fi=

17 18

201 L2}

—_— e
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

By

10.

Staff (continued)
c. Higher paid staff

The number of employvess whose empioves benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
EBO 000 was:

2024 2023

Mo, Wi,

In the band £60,007 - E70,000 ] g4

in the band £70,001 - ZBG,000 i K

In the band EG0,001 « £60,000 3 -
In the band £80 009 - £100,000 2 -

In the band £120,001 - E160,000 - 1
Inthe band £160,00% - E170,000 1 -

The above employees padicipated in the Teachers’ Pension Scheme or the Local Government Pension
Scheme. During the year ended 31 August 2024, pension contributions for these staff members
armountad bo 235, 306 (2023 £136,236) and £15,388 (2023 £14,008) respeciively,

d. Key management personnel

The key management persaonnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the sanior
managament team as listed on page 1. The total amcunt of key management personnel benefis
{including employer pansion canfribulans and employar national insurance confributions] received by Key
management personnal for thair sarvicas (o tha Acadgermy Trust was 1,763,128 (2023 - £1,485.452)

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trusiess has besn paid remuneration or has recaivad other benefits from an employment
with the Academy Trust The principal and cther staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
servicas they provide underaking fhe rokes of principal and staff membars under their contracls al
employment, The value of Trustess’ remuneration and other benefits was a5 follows:

2024 2023
E £
Mr S Strickland, Principad and Accounting Farmunerastian 165,000 - 160,000 -
OHficar 170,000 155,000
Mr L Martin, Stalf Trosies (resigned 23 May  Remuneraton 35,000 - 45,000 -
20241 40,000 50,000
Pensicn cordributions pakd 5,000 - 5,000 -
10,000 10,000
Miss K McColl {appointad & February 2024}  Remuneration 30,000 - MiA
35,000
Fension contributions paid 5,000 - MA
10,000
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10.

11.

12.

Trustees' remuneration and expenses |continuad)

During the year ended 31 August 2024, expenses totefling £1,014 were reimbursed or paid directly to 1
Trustee (2023 - ENII).

Trustess' and Officers’ insurance

Tha Academy Trust has cpted info the Department far Education’s risk protection arrangament (RPA}, an
giternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. Thiz scheme profects
Trustees and officers from clams arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Tha
Academy Trust business, and provides unlmited cover. It is not possible to quantity the Trustess and

officers: indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme,

Tangible foed assets

Furniture
Freehold and Computer Motor
property  equipment  eguipment vehicles Total
E E E E E
Cost or valuation
Al Beptamber 2023 42 TeT 322 323,324 1,298,959 11,338 44 410 836
Additions - 60,816 130,028 - 150,844
Disposals " - [11,341) 111,341)
At 31 August 2024 42,787 322 394,140 1,417,638 11,338 44,590,438
Depreciation
At 1 Seplember 2023 5,110,746 26E 554 1,048,686 11,238 8438 626
Charge for the year Q65 405 28, 227 127,260 - 1,130,581
On disposals - 5 (11.341) - (11.341)
At 31 August 2024 8,076,241 307 061 1,164,614 11,338 10, 555,275
Met book value
At 31 August 2024 33,691,081 87,058 253,024 - 34,031,184
— -
At 31 August 2023 34,656,575 64,470 250,265 34,871,311
_—
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13. Deblors

Trade deblors
Mher debiors
Prepayrnents and accrued income

14,  Creditors; Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Cither taxstion snd social security
Other creditors
Accruais and deferred incoma

Deferred income at 1 Septembeer 2023
Fesourcas daferrad during the year
Amounts released from previous pericds

2024 2023
E £

00,706 152,208
BO,310 BB, 832
223,624 485 355
385,145 571,483
2024 2023

£ £

365,914 622 832
187,178 178,308
10,108 177,049
457,085 383,370
1,030,203 1,360,580
2024 2023

E E

63,281 141,381
128,764 63,2817
{62,284)  (141,3%1)
128,764 03,281

Al the Balance Sheet date the Academy Trust was hobding funds received in advance for trips and siock
E41 6453 (2023 £16.916), univarsal infant free schocd meals and pupi premium £43,666 (2023: £40,300),
Iccal autherly capdal grants £29 210 (2023 ENil) and other ocal authority income £4, 318 (2023 £5 585)

relating to fulure periods.
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15. Statement of funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2023 Income Expendifure infout [Losses) 2024
£ E E E E E
Unrestricted
funds
Unrestricted
funds S8B 064 286,256 [200,213) = - &54,107
Restricted
general funds
General annual
grant ((385) 520,634 11.121.248 (11,336,624} - - 303,369
Oiher DfE/ESFA,
grants 41.520 849,214 (B8 214) 5 - 41,520
Pupil premiwm - 334,462 (334,462) - - -
Imherited funds 155 806 - = - - 159,806
Rastricted Local
Authority 1518 422,012 (422,012) - - 3,618
Cateh-up
premium 49 443 897,257 (87,257) - - 48 413
Pension reserve - 15,000 5,000 - (20,000) -

TT4891 12,839,184 (13,036,469

(20,000} 557,616

Page 45



THE DUSTON EDUCATION TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

18, Staternent of funds (continued)

Restricted fised

asset funds

Capital

expandilure non

GAG 85,584 - {16.038) - - 70,548

Inherited aseats 34,660,754 - {1,108,603) 190,844 - 33,642,995

DIE/ESFA

capital grants

(unspent) BT, 318 35 8BE3 (23, 80d) (88, 534) - 10,954

DiEESFA

capital grants

[epent] 101,208 - {4,540} - - 86,756

Donated fixed

assels 223,674 - (2.813) . - 220 866

Local Authority 2,382 168,875 [8,179) (102,210) - 61,963
M.M1 ,ﬂ13 Z‘DE.EEE 11|1E=|Tﬁ‘5:| = " 3“'|1‘M:ﬂﬂ'ﬁ'

Total Restricted

funds 35,835,904 13045032 (14,195,2124) - (20,000) 34,661,702

Total funds 36,402,968 13,331,288 (14,390,447 - [20,000) 35,315,808

The specific purposes for which the funds are o be applied are as follows:

Resftricted general funds will be used for educational purposes in fine with the Academy Trusts objects
and its funding agreemeant with the ESFA,

Restricted fived assets funds amounting o £34,031 165 will be reserved against future depreciation
charges.

The balance of E723 822 relates to unspent capital grants.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject fo a Emit on
the amaount of GAG A could carny foneand st 31 Awgust 2024.
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18,

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding yesr is a5 follows:

Unrestricted funds
Linrestricted funds

Restricted general funds

ieneral annual grant [GAG)
Other DFE/ESFA grants
Pupil premium

Inherited funds

Festricied Local Authorify
Catch-up premium

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

Capital expenditure non GAG

Inhenied agsets
DfEESFA capital grants
(unspent)

CIE/ESFA capial grants
[spant)

Diomated fived assets
Lesz=al Autharity

Total Restricted funds

Total funds

Balamce at Balance at
1 Saptember Gaina/ 31 August
0z2 Income  Expendiure [Losses) 2023
£ E £ E E
438, 807 34027 [ 184, BT00) - SEH 064
638,057 10,372,888 (10,300,202) = 520,634
2B 818 268,353 (265 B55) 41,520

- 310,180 {310,180) - -
158 806 - - - 159,606
. 380,101 (376,583 = 3518
E,920 459,22 (448 T28H) - 45 413

(587, 000) - (132,000 725,000 -
148,658 11,820,730 ({11,821438) T25,000 T4 81
157,787 - (72,203) € 85,584
A5, 248,877 - {BHE, 123) 34 BE0, THA
24 E25 0,067 (36.277) = B7 419
101,256 = - - 10,295
223 BTR - - - 223678
29E 508 (285 2265) - 2382
35,756 287 397 575 (1,052 B29) - 35,081,043
35902666 12,218,308 (13,014.267) T28.000 35835904
36341673 12,532,432 (13,109,137) 729000 35403958
EEams——— ——————— e,
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16,

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current pericd

Restricted

Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funcds funds funds

2024 2024 2024 2024

£ E E E

Tangible fixed aszets - - 34031164 34,031,164
Current assels B54,107 1,587,808 T2er2 2,314,938
Creditars due within ona year - {1,030,293) (1,030,293}
Total 654,107 65T 615 34104066 35,315,809

.
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior period
Restricted

LInresirsched Reztrcted  figed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2023 2023 2023 2023

£ E £ E

Tangible fixed sssets - - 48571311 387131
Currant assels 568,064 2 144 4580 Bg, 702 2,802 216
Creditors due within one year - {1,369,559) (1,369 555}
Total 558, 064 Tr4851 A5 061,013 36403083

=
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i7.

1B.

18,

20,

Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

Net expenditure fer the pariod (as per Statemant of Financial Activities)

Adjustments far:

Depreciation

[nterest recehabls

Cap#al grants from DfE and other capital income

Deefined benefit pansion scheme cost kess contributions payabile

Lefined banefit pansion scheme finance {incomelicost
Decreazalincreasa) in debtors
Decraass in credifors

Met cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Fepayments of firance leases

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest receivable
Purchase of tangible fived acsets
Capital granis from DFE and other capital income

Met cash provided by investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and al bank

2024 2023
E £
{1,068,159)  (566.705)
1,130,991 1,056 554
(21,010) (282)
(206,838) (693,800)
{5.000) 105,000
(15,000) 27,000
176,348 (200,109)
{33%,266) {182 344)
(346,834)  (564,598)
EsS. 88—
2024 2023
E 5
. 24,1580
L
2024 2023
£
21,010 242
(190,844) (2596227
205 E38 583,800
JE, 004 8T BES
2024 2023
E £
1,919,793 2,230,723
—_—
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2.

Analysls of changes in net debt

At 1
September At 31
2023 Cash flows August 2024
E E E
Cagh at bank and in hand 2,230,723 {310,930) 1,918,793

2,230,723 (310,930) 1,919,793

Pension commitments

The Academy Trusts employees belong io two principal pension schemes: the Teachers Pensicn
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Governmeni Pensicn
Schema (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Northamptonshire County Council. Both are
mulfiemplioyer defined banefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation af the TPS related to the period anded 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31
March 2022,

There were no oulstanding or prepaid contributicns at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Teachers' Penslon Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Schemea (TPS) is & statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, govemned by
the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulalions 2014, Membership is automatic for full-ime teachers in
academizs, All teachers have the option to opt-cut of the TPE fallowing enrcdment

The TFS is an unfunded scheme to which both (he member and smployer makes contributions, ae a

percantage of salary - these confributions ame cradited to the Exchegquer. Retirament and omer pENEIon
benefits are paid by publc funds provided by Parfiameant.
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i

Pension commitments [continued)
Waluation of the Teachers” Pension Schems

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in #ccordance with the Public Service Pensions Valuations and Emplover Cost Cap) Dirsctions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review b to ensure schema costs are recognised
and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of fulure confributions.

Acharial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benefits and many other factars. The latest actuaral valuation of the TPS wea carried out as at 31 March
2020. The valuation raport was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the
SCAPE rate, sat by HMT, 2pplving a notional investment raturn based on 1, 7% above the rate of CPE. The
key elemants of the valualion outeome ars:

. employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including & 0.08% administration
lewy), This is an increase of 55% in employer confributions and the cost control result is such that no
change in mamber benefits is needed.

] total scheme Eabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of fulure benefits) for
sarvice to the effective date of 2252 000 million and mational assets (estimated future coniributions
tegether with the noficnal invesiments held al the valuation date) of £222 200 million, giving a
nofional past service deficit of £38,300 millien,

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate s 2.4% above the rale of CPIl, assumed real rate of refurn s 2.4% In excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real samings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earmings growth is 4.45%

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024, The nesdt valuation result is due to
be implemented from 1 April 2028,

Tha employar's pension cosis paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,382 775 (2023 -£1,153,571),

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation & on the Teachers' Pensions website
(hitpsifwaw, teacherspengions.co, ukinewsemployers 201 54 teachers-pensions-valuation-repart. aspx).

Undsr the definitions sat out In FRS 102, the TPS ie an unfunded mult-employer pension schame. The
academy trust is unable to identify ils share of the underlying essets and Labilties of the plan. Accordingly,
the academy trus! has taken advartage of the exemplion in FRS 102 and has accounted for its
contributions o the scheme as if it were a defined confribution scheme. The academy trust has sst out
above, the infarmation svailable on the scheme.
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&L,

Pension commitments (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a furded dsfined benefit pansion scheme, with the assets hald in saparate frnisiee-
gdministered funds. Tha total confribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £395.000 (2023 -
E357 0000, of which employer's confributions fotalied £302 000 {2023 - E270.000) ard employees’
contributions totalled £87 000 (2023 - £87 000}, The agreed contribution rates for fulure years are 187 per
cent for employers and 12.5 per cent for employpees,

Parliament has agreed, at the requast of the Sscretany of State for BEducation, 1o a guarantae thatl, in Ha
event of academy closure, outstanding Locsl Governmen! Pension Schame fabiifies would be mal by he
Depariment for Education, The guaraniee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment o the guaranies, with & parliamentary minute
publshed an GOV.LE.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2024 2023

% o

Rate of increase n salaries 315 3.45
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentiinflation 265 2885
Discount rate for scheme ligbilities 5.00 a.20
Commutation of pensions to lumg sums 55.00 50.00
=

The currant mortality assumptions inclede sufficlent allowance for fulure Improvements in maortality rates,
Tha assumed life axpaciations oo retirament ags &5 are!

2024 2023
Years Years
Retiring today
Males 18.1 18,2
Females 24.2 24.2
Rediring In 20 years
Wales 21.5 216
Famales 253 253
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22,  Pension commitments (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Discownt rabe +0.1%

Discount rate -0,1%

Mortality assurmption - 1 year increase
Martality assumption - 1 year decrease
CP| rate +0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

Share of scheme assels

The Azademy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities
Bonads

Property
Cash

Total market value of azsete

The actual return on schame assete was £5099,000 (2023 - £(53,0000),

The amounts racognised in the Statemeant of Financial Activities are as follows:

Current sarvica cost

Interest incomea
Interast cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

2024 2023
E E
133,000 120,000
{123,000)  {120,000)
224,000 158,000
(Z224,000) {159,000)
133,000 117,000
{133,000) (117.000)
—_— =
At 31 At 31 August
August 2024 2023
E E
3,274,000 3,282 000
1,730,000 1,263,000
927,000 B54 000
247 000 3,000
6,178,000 5282000
2024 2023
E E
(297.000) (375,000)
282,000 220,000
{267,000) {247 000)
(282,000) (402,000
_— e
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2.

Pension commitments (continued)

Changis in the pregent value of the defined benefit obligations ware as follows

2024 2023
E F
At 1 September 5,261,000 5,631,000
Interest cost 267,000 247,000
Employee contributions o7 000 ar,o00
Actuarial losses/(gains) 337,000  (1,002,000)
Bensfits paid (82,000} (77,000
Current senvice cost 267,000 375,000
At 31 August 6,177,000 6,261,000
—e—
Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assels ware a5 fedlows
2024 2023
E E
At 1 September £,281,000 B, 034,000
Return on plan assats {excluding net interest on the net defined
pensiondiability) ZBZ.000 220,000
Achearial gainsXlosses) 317,000 {273,000
Employer contributicns 302,000 270,000
Ermphoyes contributions 87,000 &7.000
Benefits paid {82,000) {77.000)
At 31 Aucpuest &177,000 5,261,000
—_—
Total remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:
2024 2023
E £
Changes in financial assumptions 138,000 17,451,000
Changes In demographic assumplions 11,000 TE.000
Other experience {1BE,000) {340,000
Relurn an assets excluding amounts included in net interest 317,000 (185,000)
Pension assat ceifing (304,000 (275,000
[ 20, 000) 729,000
_——— —
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The amounts recagnised in the balance sheet are:

20024 2023

E £

Closing fair value of scheme assets 6,177,000 5 261,000
Clesing defined bansfit obligation {5.,601,000) (<,9388,000%
Surplus not recognised = asset ceiling (B7E,000) [275,000)

Other finance (incomelcosts:

2024 2023

E E

Intarest income on pension scheme gesets 282 000 220,000
Interest on pension scheme labilties (267 ,000) (247, 000)
15,000 (27.000)

—_—

2.  Other financial commitments

The Duston Education Trust is a PFl school (Privale Finance Iniiative - & procurement method that uses
private schoal sector mvestment to deliver public sector services). Therefore The Duston Education Trust
have a PF| agresment that approximately £467k will be made aveilable each year for the senvices
provided. Based on an expected inflaticnary rate of 8% (2023: 7%) per year the commiment is expected

1o e
2024 2023
E E
Withim 1 year 1,262,077 1,065,005
Between 1 and § years 5,048,308 4,260,021
After mora than 5 years 10,086, 616 0 585 047
16,407,001 148910073
—0
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24,

26,

Cperating lease commitments

At 31 August 2024 the Acadermy Trust had commiments to make futura mnimum lease payments under
non-canceliable coarating leases as follows:

2024 2023

E E
ok kater than 1 yvesr 29,174 -
Later than 1 vear and not laier than S years 51,064 -
80,228 -

) =

Members' Hability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the compary in tha
event of it being wound up while hefshe is a member, or within ona year after he/she ceases to be 3
member, such amaunt as may bé required, not exceading E10 for the debts and labilities contracted
before helshe ceasas to b a member

Related party transactions

Crwing o the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drewn
from local public and peivate sector organisations, trensactions may lake place wilth crganigations in
which the frustess hawve an imterest, All fransactions involving such organisations are conducied in
accordance with the reguirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all
transactions made on or after 1 April 2018 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the
Acedemy Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relsting to connacted and
reizted party transachans,

Mr J McCann, a former Trustea of The Dusion Education Trust, |s & director of Inclusion Quality Mark
(LUK Limited, During the year Inclusion Guality Mark (LK) Limied indicsd the Duston Education Trust for
an Inchusmon review, amount to E5B8 (2023 £2 717} The amount owes &t the end of the year was £318
(2023 Enil),

o Wads, molher of 5 Wade, was elected for the rode of Chair of the Board of Trusiees at the 15 July
2024 mesting and came farmally into the role in September 2024, C Wade's appainiment was made in
open compelition and & Wade was nal imwvolved in the decision-making process regarding appointment. 5
Wade & paid within the normal pay scele for hie roée and receives no special freatment as a result of his
ralaticnship to & rusies

Mo other related party fransactiona took place in the pemod of account, other than cerain Trusiess’
remuneration and expensss siready disclosed in note 10,
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27, Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust distributes 18-13 bursary funds o students a2 an agent for ESFA. In the accounting
period ending 31 August 2024 the trust received £11,160 (2023: £12 443) and disbursad £13.004 {2023

£13,852) from the fund. An amount of £4.728 (2023: £6.500) is included In ather creditors relating to
undistribuled funds that is repayable o the ESFA,
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